Minutes of Cabinet

28 September 2016

Present:

Councillor I.T.E. Harvey, Leader and Council Policy co-ordination Councillor A.C. Harman, Deputy Leader and Towards a Sustainable Future programme (TaSF)

Councillor M.M. Attewell, Community Wellbeing
Councillor N.J. Gething, Planning and Economic Development
Councillor A.J. Mitchell, Environment and Compliance
Councillor J.M. Pinkerton OBE, Housing
Councillor H.R.D. Williams, Finance and Customer Service

Apologies:

Councillor C.B. Barnard, Corporate Management

2288 Minutes

The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 20 July 2016 and the Extraordinary Cabinet meeting held on 21 July 2016, were each agreed as a correct record.

2289 Disclosures of Interest

There were none.

2290 Recommendations from the Local Plan Working Party

The Cabinet considered the recommendations from the most recent meeting of the Local Plan Working Party.

- 1. Approve the draft Spelthorne Functional Economic Area Analysis for public consultation;
- 2. Approve the Draft Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report for public consultation;
- 3. Approve the Strategic Land Availability Assessment Methodology;
- 4. Approve the Brief for the Green Belt Assessment for public consultation and authorises the Chairman (Cllr Harvey), to approve any appropriate alterations to the brief arising from that consultation;
- 5. Approve the Planning Monitoring Report 2016; and
- 6. Approve the following proposals on the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):

- a. 5% of monies received be retained by the Borough Council to meet its costs of administering the CIL process (in accordance with the CIL Regulations);
- Engagement with local communities on how the 'neighbourhood funding' element (15% of CIL monies received) should be based on the 5 main community areas of the Borough – Ashford, Shepperton, Staines, Stanwell and Sunbury;
- c. Decisions on the allocation of the 'neighbourhood funding' element to be solely for the Borough Council to make subject to appropriate community consultation; and
- d. A Joint Infrastructure Working Group with Surrey County Council, including the portfolio holder for Planning and Economic Development or a Deputy, be established to put in place appropriate mechanisms for establishing priorities and programming for expenditure of the remaining 80% of CIL monies.

2291 Off Street Parking Places Order 2016 - Key Decision

The Cabinet considered a report on the implementation of the Spelthorne Borough Council (Off-Street Parking Places) Order 2016.

RESOLVED that Cabinet agrees to:

- Implement the Spelthorne Borough Council (Off-Street Parking Places)
 Order 2016 to include the amendments set out in paragraph 2.1 of the
 Officer report, subject to public consultation; and
- 2. Authorise the Group Head for Commissioning and Transformation, in consultation with the Head of Corporate Governance, to consider and address any objections arising from the public consultation.

Reason for decision

The proposed amendments to the Order provide the Council with the ability to enforce restrictions or introduce revised charging regimes such as weekly season tickets.

2292 Outline Budget 2017/18 - 2020/21 - Key Decision

The Cabinet considered a report on the Outline Budget for 2017-18 to 2020-21.

- 1. Set the net budgeted expenditure (before investment and use of reserves) for 2017-18 at a maximum level of £13.9m;
- 2. Support the overall strategy set out in the report for addressing efficiencies and achieving medium term financial sustainability;

- 3. The proposed response, as appended to the report, to the Government's consultation papers on Fair Funding and 100% business rates retention:
- 4. The financial health indicators set out in paragraph 3.25 of the report; and
- 5. The Council accepting the Government offer of a 4 year funding settlement in order to protect the Council against risk of further increases in payments it is required to make in future years to the Government, but in so doing makes clear this is on the basis that it does not accept negative grant allocations for 2019-20.

Reason for decision

The recommended options set out in the Report will help to ensure the ongoing financial sustainability of the Council in light of changes to Revenue Support Grant and other longer term financial pressures that local government is facing.

2293 Capital Monitoring

Cabinet considered a report on capital expenditure covering the period April to July 2016.

RESOLVED that Cabinet notes the current level of capital spend.

2294 Revenue Monitoring

Cabinet considered a report on revenue expenditure covering the period to July 2016 and the forecast position.

RESOLVED that Cabinet notes the current level of revenue spend.

2295 Appointment to Outside Body

Cabinet considered the appointment of a representative and deputy representative to the NHS North West Surrey Sustainability and Transformation Plan Stakeholder Reference Group for the period July 2016 to June 2017.

RESOLVED that Cabinet agrees the appointment of Councillor Daxa Patel as the Council's representative and Councillor Sinead Mooney as the deputy representative on the NHS North West Surrey Sustainability and Transformation Plan Stakeholder Reference Group for the period July 2016 to June 2017.

2296 Leader's announcements

The following are the latest service updates from various Council departments.

The Council has been warning residents to stay away from unregistered tattooists following an increase in the number of complaints across the country. Skin piercing procedures can cause scarring and transfer life changing infections such as Hepatitis and HIV if they are not done correctly. Unregistered tattooists often operate from home and, although they may be cheaper are often inexperienced and fail to maintain a clean, safe environment.

For the sixth year running, the Walled Garden in Sunbury-on-Thames has won the prestigious Green Flag Award which recognises the best green spaces in the country.

The Environment Agency and Spelthorne Council have undertaken a joint project to restore part of the River Ash in Shepperton. Various techniques were used to create a bypass and naturalise this newly opened section of the River, making it easier for fish to swim between the River Colne and the Thames. Work was also undertaken to improve the water quality and provide an enriched habitat for fish, birds, amphibians and invertebrates.

New pay and display machines have been installed in car parks across the Borough. Drivers will be able to pay for their parking using cash or a debit/credit card and contactless payment will also be introduced soon.

A 2.5km fun run was held on 26 July to celebrate the launch of a new running route in Laleham Park which has been installed to encourage residents to keep fit and make better use of the Park.

Over forty young people received free skate and scooter instruction at the new skate park in Long Lane Recreation Ground in Stanwell on 27 July. The sessions were organised and funded by Spelthorne Council with support from Team Rubicon who provided the instruction.

The Council launched Get Active 50+ in August to inspire residents aged 50 and over to take up a new activity.

More than 100 local children and their families enjoyed a series of free art and craft activities in the Borough's libraries this summer. Participants helped create a community art piece which was unveiled at a celebratory showcase event on 31 August in Staines Library.

Leisure Services is in the process of compiling the 2017/18 edition of the Leisure Directory which provides local residents with information on leisure centres, parks, clubs, groups, halls and community centres. The Directory is distributed through libraries, leisure centres and doctors' surgeries and is also available on the Council's website.

Community Tennis Limited took over the management of the tennis courts in Fordbridge Park in Ashford at the beginning of September. Floodlights are currently being installed and work to build a tennis pavilion will start towards the end of September.

Junior Park Run has been launched in the Borough. This free event is run by volunteers for young people aged 4-14 and takes place in Laleham Park every Sunday from 9am. Spelthorne Council provides grant funding for the initiative.

The Council has received a commuted sum of £794,809 for the provision of affordable housing to help meet our housing needs. This was negotiated as part of the proposed redevelopment of the former London Irish site in The Avenue by Crest for housing purposes. A further sum of £553,250 is due to be secured at a later date.

On 7 September, the Senior Coroner for Surrey, Richard Travers, announced his findings into the sad death of Zane Gbangbola who died at his home in Chertsey during the flooding in February 2014. This followed a five week Inquest which took place in June and July this year. The finding was accidental death caused by Carbon Monoxide poisoning from a petrol powered pump used by the family in their home to remove flood water from the basement. The Council has always maintained that there is no evidence of a link between this tragedy and the former landfill close to the family home.

Spelthorne Business Forum's annual boat trip took place on 13 September. Almost 60 people attended the networking event which was sponsored by Heathrow and French Brothers.

Alfie Smith of Staines Road West in Ashford pleaded guilty to one count of flytipping at Redhill Magistrates Court on 13 September. The offence related to a large quantity of household and builders waste that had been dumped in New Road in Shepperton on 25 November 2015. Mr Smith was fined £2850.

Spelthorne beat off competition from hundreds of entrants to pick up three awards at this year's prestigious South & South East in Bloom Awards, held in Fareham on 14 September. The ever-popular Sunbury Walled Garden claimed the top-spot, receiving a Gold award and being declared overall winner in the Small Park category for the fourth year running. And there was more good news with Staines and Sunbury Cemeteries both gaining Silver Gilt awards in the Best Cemetery category.

This year's Junior Citizen is taking place at Walton Fire Station from 12 - 27 September. Over 1000 year 6 pupils will attend the event which teaches children about staying safe and being good citizens. Topics covered include fire safety, first aid, online security, stranger danger and contacting the emergency services.

Planning for the Senior Citizen event is well underway and Shepperton Studios has offered to host the event free of charge on 19 October. The event will include a talk from a Tesco Pharmacist and a presentation about identity theft, with various support agencies on-hand to give information about their services.

The Council is holding its first Living and Ageing Well Week from Saturday 24 September – Sunday 2 October. Designed for the over-50s, this nine-day event promotes some of the activities and services aimed at helping older adults improve their health. Activities are also taking place at the Spelthorne and Sunbury Leisure Centres and various other locations in the Borough.

The Business Improvement District (BID) for Staines-upon-Thames is rapidly gaining momentum. Steven Harvey, Managing Director of Oasis Estate Agents in Clarence Street, has been appointed as BID Chairman with Stephen Gould, founder of The Optical Shop in the Elmsleigh Centre, as Vice Chairman. The vote to decide whether the BID will go ahead takes place from 1 - 28 November. The voting process will be managed independently by the Electoral Commission and the result will be announced on 29 November.

The Surrey Business Awards is taking place at Epsom Racecourse on 30 November and the Council has linked up with the organisers to introduce a 'Best Spelthorne Business' category to help showcase local businesses.

2297 Urgent items

There were none.

2298 Exempt Business

RESOLVED to move the exclusion of the Press and Public for the following items in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006.

2299 Exempt report - Disposal of Ashford multi-storey car park site - Key Decision

The Cabinet considered a report on the disposal of the Ashford Multi Storey Car Park site. The options considered were in the main body of the report.

- 1. The disposal of the Ashford multi-storey car park to the preferred bidder or to any other bidder subject to consultation with the Leader (as the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Assets);
- 2. The disposal being subject to the provision of 40% affordable housing (with 35% on site and the remainder in the form of a financial contribution);
- 3. Set aside a sum of £1m from any capital receipt received from the sale of the site to assist with more parking provision in Ashford; and
- 4. Authorise the Group Head Regeneration and Growth to negotiate and finalise all terms for the sale of the site in consultation with the Leader.

5. Send a strong message to the affordable housing provider of the site that it wishes to see priority to nomination rights for the affordable housing given to local people.

Reasons for decision

The preferred bidder has delivered the 'best value' bid in both monetary terms and in the benefits the development will bring to the wider community in terms of a retailer and quality housing. It will provide considerably more residential units than the previously preferred bidder and include on and off site affordable housing in line with the Borough's overall requirements to provide 40% of new build as affordable.

The proposal will also generate a significant capital receipt for the Council which will assist in delivering one of the three main strands of the Council's 'Towards a Sustainable Future' transformation programme.

Funding to address car parking issues has been set aside in recognition of the significant level of local concern from residents. This may be used in conjunction with other funding streams that may be forthcoming from other sources such as Surrey County Council.

2300 Exempt report - Catering at Staines Community Centre - Key Decision

The Cabinet considered a report on the future of catering provision at Staines Community Centre. The options considered were in the main body of the report.

RESOLVED that Cabinet agrees to the change of service provision of the café at the Community Centre from a Contractor run café to a Volunteer run snack service.

Reason for decision

This change will enable a catering service at Staines Community Centre to continue but in a more cost effective way which generates a small income stream to the Council and reduces prices for those that use the café.

2301 Exempt report - Council Tax and Business Rates write-offs

The Cabinet considered a report on Business Rates, Council Tax and Sundry Debt Write Offs.

- 1. The Business Rates write offs amounting to £23,639.36
- 2. The Council Tax write offs amounting to £ 24,436.76
- 3. The Sundry Debt write offs amounting to £6,959.54.

Reason for decision

The debts referred to in this report have reached a point where their recovery is no longer possible for reasons stated in each case. No further action can therefore be taken to recover these debts and it is good accounting practice in such cases to write them off.

NOTES:-

- (1) Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are reminded that under Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 16, the "call-in" procedure shall not apply to recommendations the Cabinet makes to the Council. The matters on which recommendations have been made to the Council, if any, are identified with an asterisk [*] in the above Minutes.
- (2) Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are entitled to call in decisions taken by the Cabinet for scrutiny before they are implemented, other than any recommendations covered under (1) above.
- (3) Within five working days of the date on which a decision of the Cabinet or a Cabinet Member is published, not less than three members [one of whom must be the Chairman] of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are able to "call in" a decision;
- (4) To avoid delay in considering an item "called in", an extraordinary meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be convened within seven days of a "call in" being received if an ordinary meeting is not scheduled in that period;
- (5) When calling in a Cabinet decision for review the members doing so should in their notice of "call in":-
 - Outline their reasons for requiring a review;
 - Indicate any further information they consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee needs to have before it in order to conduct a review in addition to the written report made by officers to the Cabinet;
 - Indicate whether, where the decision was taken collectively by the Cabinet, they wish the Leader or his nominee (who should normally be the Cabinet Member) or where the decision was taken by a Cabinet Member, the member of the Cabinet making the decision, to attend the committee meeting; and
 - Indicate whether the officer making the report to the Cabinet or the Cabinet Member taking the decision or his/her representative should attend the meeting.

(6) The deadline of five working days for "call in" by Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to the above decisions by the Cabinet is the close of business on 6 October 2016.